
Pitt Miss Sarah Rebecca, shopkpr. 
Ransome Frank, architect., Dene 

cottage 
Robarts Mrs Hannah, Blythmore 

house 
Rouse Chas. limeburner; h Ipswich 
Savage Mrs Harriet Emma, baker 

anu shopkeeper 

Claydon. 
Schreiber Mrs Lucy, Claydon lodge 
Shulvero \Villiam, saddler 
Smith Benjamin, grocer 
Snell Mr Robert, Claydon villa 
Thaine J oseph, market garJener 
Watkins Jos. farmer, Claydon hall 
Watling Charles, builder and 

bricklayer; et.timates given 

229 

W ebber Geo. miller & cab pro 
prietor 

RAILWAY.-G.E.R. station. Car. 
rington Wm. Mason, stationmsr. 

CARRIERS-pass through to Ipswich 
daily 

CLOPTON is a village on the Debenham road, 4 miles N.\V. of Woodbridge, and 7 miles N.E. of 
Ipswich. Its parish, which includes Olopton Green and several scattered houses and farms, extending 2 
miles N. of the village, is in Woodbridge union, 'Woodbridge county court district, Ipswich bankruptcy 
court district, Carlford hundred, '\Voodbridge petty sessional division, Carlford rural deanery, Suffolk 
archdeaconry, and Norwich diocese. It had 3.58 inhabitants in 1891, and comprises 2,074 acres of land; 
the rateable value is £2,689. It is in the manors of Kingshall, of which the Rev. Samuel Hooke is lord, 
and Brendhall, Rousehall, and 'Vascolies, of which '\V. S. Calvert, Esq., of East Bergholt, is lord, and 
for which a general Customary Court is held yearly in July, but the chief part of the soil is enfranchised. 
Lord Rendlesham, Mrs. Helen Bennett, Mr. John Symonds, and Mr. F. \V. Catt are the principalland­
owners. In the 31st of Ed ward I. (1303) John de W ey land obtained a charter for a market and fair here, 
but they have long been obsolete. The Sackvilles, Weylands, and Bardolphs were successively lords of 
Clopton from the reign of Henry I. till after that of Edward Ill. A small stream, which rises here and 
runs through part of the parish, is supposed to have been navigable at one time ; a field through which 
it runs is still called Clopton Dock. In 1868 an urn containing ashes was found in a bog through 
which this stream flows. Pear Tree Farm derives its name from a large pear tree, said to be the 
largest in England, which stands near the house, and from which in 1873 one ton of pears was gathered. 
The CHURCH (St. Mary) is a small ancient fabric, dating from the 13th century, and comprising nave, 
chancel, and a tower on the south side of the nave, containing six bells. In 1883 the chancel was rebuilt 
on a larger scale, and the entire church was thoroughly restored, at a cost of about £2,000. It has since 
been re-seated with open oak benches, and a new organ placed in the chancel. A piscina was found in 
the south wall during the restoration. The Register dates from 1536. The living is a rectory, valued inK. B. 
at £16 13s. 4d., and now having a yearly rent-charge of £69819s. 10d., in lieu of tithes commuted in 1843. 
It is in the patronage of the Rev. C. H. Frost, of Foulsham, and incumbency of the Rev. Samuel Hooke, 
M. A. A ScHOOL BoARD was formed here in January, 1874, and a handsome School, with master's house, 
was erected in 1875, at a cost of £1,074, but not opened until1877. It is attended by 60 children. 
The TowN EsTATE comprises four tenements, occupied by poor families; 14 acres of land, held since 
1489, for the repairs of the church and the relief of the poor, and now let for £35 a year ; and the Bell 
Pightle, 2.! acres, let for £4 10s. a year, which is applied in the repairs of the bells. In 1855, 'Villiam 
Jacques Steel left £200, to be mvested in three per cent. consols, the proceeds of which are to be applied 
in the purchase of bread, to be distributed every Sunday amongst the poor of the parish. 

PosT OFFICE at Messrs. Dunnett and Son's. Letters arrive at 9.5 a.m., and are despatched at 
4.55 p.m. on week days only, via Woodbridge, which is the nearest Telegraph Office. Grundisburgh is 
the nearest Money Order Office. 

Archer John, farm bailiff 
Barham FredericK, fanp.er 
Barker James, farmer 
Bennett Mrs Helen, fmr.; hlpswich 
Buckingham Wm. fmr. & Chars-

field 
Burch Henry, farmer, Manor farm 
Chapman Lionel, fmr. Pear tree fm 
Crapnell J ames, boot & shoe maker 
Crapnell William, blacksmith 
Creasey W illiam, relieving officer 
Daniel Lewis S. farmer 
Dowsing Frederick, farmer 
Dowsing Temple, carpenter, wheel-

wright and farmer, & Witnesham 
Dunnett Edward, farm bailiff 
Dunnett \\7 illiam & Son, grocers, 

drapers, and postmasters 
Emerson William, farm bailiff 

Gooderham (";eorge, farmer, Potash 
farm, and Monewden 

Hall William, farm bailiff 
Hicks Miss Alice, Board school­

mistress 
Hooke Rev Samuel, M.A., rector 

and diocesan inspector of schools, 
The Rectory 

Hunt William Wright, farmer, and 
Grundisburgh 

Lancaster Aaron, fmr. Church farm 
Mendham H. B., organist and parish 

clerk 
l\Iiller Fred, farmer ; h Otley 
Pleasance J oseph, farm bailiff 
Pratt Frederick, farmer, Green farm 
Pratt Philip, farmer 
Pratt Wm. David, fmr, Hill farm 
Reeve Thomas, farm bailiff 

Smith David, farmer 
Smith Joseph, farmer, and Haske­

ton 
Steel Geo. Page, farm bailiff, Potash 

farm 
Steel Henry, dealer 
Steel Mr John 
Steel Wm. ( exors. of), fanners and 

land owners, ~fount Pleasant 
Tye Frederick, farmer 
\Vilby Arthur, vict. The Crown 
Woods Frank, carrier 

CARRIERS.-Frank Woods to Ips­
wich Tuesdays and Saturdays, and 
W oodbridge Thursdays 

RAILWAY.-Wood bridge is the near­
est station 

COCKFIELD, or Ookefield, is a widely spread village, scattered round eight greens, called Great, 
Colchester, Parsonage, Button, Srnithwood, Wi·r dlwr, Cross, and Old Hall green. It lies near the source 
of a rivulet, from 6 to 7 miles S.S.E. of Bury St. Edmunds, and 8 to 10 miles N. by E. of Sudbury, and 
has a station on the Bury and :Melford branch of the Great Eastern Railway. Its parish is in Cosford 
union, Bury St. Edmunds county court district and bankruptcy court district, Babergh hundred, Melford 
petty sessional division, Lavenham rural deanery, Sudbury archd.eaconry, and Ely diocese. It had 926 
inhabitants in 1891, and comprises 3,626 acres ofland : the rateable value is £4,703. Its parish lies in 
the manors of Cock:fi.eld Hall and Earl's Hall, the lordship of which belongs to Frederick Charsley, Esq., 
Qf :Brighton. H. J. Oakes, Esq., J:,.ady Bunbury, Messrs. F. S. Hensby, J. T. Cousens, ThoroasJennings, 


